ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

I, the undersigned natural person of the age of 18 years or more, a citizen of the State of Texas, acting as incorporator of a corporation under the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, do hereby adopt the following Articles of incorporation for such corporation.:

ARTICLE L

NAME

The name of the corporation is RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION bereinsiter referred to see "Association."

ARTICLE IL

NON-PROBET CORPORATION

The Association is a non-profit corporation. Upon dissolution, all of the Association's assets shall be distributed to the State of Texas or an organization exempt from taxes under internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) for one or more purposes that are exempt under the Texas franchise tax.

ARTICLE DIL

DURATION

The period of its duration is perpetual, and the Association shall continue until dissolved as provided by law.

ARTICLE IV.

PURPOSES

This Association does not contemplate peruniary gain or profit to the members thereof, and the general purposes for which it is formed are to provide for maintenance, preservation and suchitectural control of the residents less and common artic within ther certain tract of property described in the Declaration of Geography and Residentials for Rivannone Joine Section One Subdivison (herein referred to as Residentials), a subdivision Management County, Terms, as per map thereof filed in the Map Records of Montgomery County, Terms, The Residence are recorded in the Real Property Records of Montgomery County Clerk's File No. 2006-033612, Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Terms, and other properties brought within the subteme of the Restrictions or similar Restrictions for Riverstone Points Section One Subdivisor in Montgomery County, Terms purpose, and subdivisor and authority of seid Restrictions and to promote the health, safety and welface of this specialism within the above-described property and any additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of this Association for this purpose, and specifically:

- (a) To promote the healthy sidery, and welfare of the los-owners of Riversione Points Section One Subdivision:
- (b) To exercise all of the powers and privileges and to perform all of the duties and obligations of the developer of Doddardt sheet for his the Resultations for Riverstone Points Section One Subdivision only as recorded to the Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas, as suppressy be attributed from time to describe as therein provided, which may be assigned to the American by said Dodarner pursuent to said Restrictions, and as may be set forth in any other supplemental Restrictions which may be filed from time to time pursuant to and in accordance with the authority and provintons of the Restrictions for Blue Heron Bay Subdivision.
- (c) To acquire (by gift, purchase or otherwise), own, hold, improve, build upon, operate, maintain, convey, sell, bean, transfer, dedicate for public use or otherwise dispose of real or personal property in connection with the affairs of the Association;
- (d) To borrow montage, plotter, dend to brust, or hypotherate my or all of its real or personal property as accusing for manney borrowed or dobts institued:
- (e) To dedicate; add, immediator convey all or any part of the common and to any public agency, authority, or utility for such purposes and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the members;

- (f) To participate in management complications with other non-profit corporations organized for the same purposes or some additional stallesteld property or common area as provided for in the ResideStrat:
- (g) To have and to exemple any and all powers, highly and privileges which a corporation organized under the Non-Profit Corporation Act of the Seats of Texas by law may now or bereafter have or exercise, but which are construct with this non-profit corporation claiming and continuing to claim as an exemption from federal income and state franchise taxes.

ARTICLE Y.

MEMBERSHIP

Every owner of a lot located in Riversione Politic Section One Subdivision, or in other additional property brought within the achieve of the Restrictions for Riversione Points Section One Subdivision pursuant to the provisions and authority of said Restrictions, which is subject to a maintenance charge assessment by the Declarent, as the developer, or assigns, including contract purchasers, shall be a member of the Association. The foregoing is not intended to include persons or entities who hold an interest merely as accounty for the performance of an obligation. Membership shall be appurenant to and may not be segurated from ownership of any lot which is subject to assessment by the Association.

ARTICLE VL

RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

The Association shall not pay dividents or other corporate income to its directors or officers or otherwise scenes distributable profits or patrals the realization of private gain. The Corporation shall have no power to take any accide prohibited by the Texas Non-Profit Act. The Corporation shall not have the power to engage in any activities, except to an insubstantial degree, that are not in furtherance of the purposes set forth above.

ARTICLE VIL

INITIAL REGISTISTED OFFICE AND AGENT

The street address of the initial registered office of the Association is 9320 Old River Court

West, Montgomery, Terras 77356. The name of the mittal registrated agent at this office in Dan.

ARTICLE YUL.

The qualifications, manifer of selection during terms, and other matters relating to the Board of Directors (referred to as the "Board of Directors") shall be provided in the Bylaws. The initial Board of Directors shall complet of finers(3) persons. The number of directors may be increased or decreased by adoption or anticolousies of tiplaws. In electing directors, members shall not be permitted to complete their votes by giving one candidate arrangy votes as the number of directors to be alected or by distributing the same number of votes emong any number of candidates. The initial Board of Directors shall consist of the following persons at the following sidesess:

Nume of Director	Street: Address
Dan Golden	9320 Old River Count West, Montgomery, Texas 77156
Belinda Golden	9320.01d River Court West, Montgontery, Texas 77356
Montey Williams	9324 Old River Court West, Montgomery, Testas 77356

ARTICLE IX.

LIMITATION ON MABILITY OF DIRECTORS.

A director is not lithic to the Association or members for monetary damages for an act or omission in the director's capacity as director except to the extent offserwise provided by a statute of the State of Texas.

ARTICLE X.

MONTH STRUMENT

The association may indemnify a person who was, is, or is threatened to be made a named defendant or respondent in litigation or inter propositings because the person is or was a director or other person related to the Association as provided by the provisions in the Texas New-profit Corporation Act governing indemnification. As provided in the Bylanes, the Board of Directors shall

have the power to disting this require printing and limited one for the Adjoint Control indentally districted, of finess, members, or others related to the Composition.

ARTICLE XL

ALTERATIONS.

The Board of Directors of this Association is expansificant bound to after, smead, or repeal the Bylaws or to adopt new Bylaws of this Association, without any action on the past of the members; but the Bylaws made by the Directors and the powers so confirmed may be alread or repealed by the members.

ARTICLE XIL

GON STRUCK

All references in these Articles of locorporation to statutes, regulations, or other sources of legal authority shall refer to the authorities cited, or their automates, and they may be unusued from time to time.

ARTICLE MIL

The name and street address of the interperator is:

Robert E. Page 2040 Loop 336 West, Suite 212 Course, Telcir 77904

I execute these Articles of Incorporation on Movember 25, 2007.

NOOKROBATOR:

5

STATE OF TEXAS

70.82

1

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby carrify that on this the Afficience of November, 2007, personally appeared biffers and ACHENTIL. PAGE, who being being friend that he was the person whose name is withstanted to that integroing document as incorporator, and that the statements contained therein are time.

phalimaphyman in

STANS: OF .

RIVERSTONE POINTS PRODUCT CONTRAD ASSOCIATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1

Offices

Principal Office 1.01

1.02 Other Offices

ARREGAN 2

Definitions

APPROVE 3

Qualifications for Membership

3.01 Wendarship

3.02

Proof of Hembership No Additional Qualification Cartificates of Numbership 3.03

3.04

ARTICLE 4

Voting Rights 4.01 Vo

Vocing .

4.02 Proxies

Querun 4.03

4.04

Required Vote Cumulative Voting 4.05

ADTICLE 5

Meetings of Heathers

Ammal Mestings Special Mestings 5.01

5.02

5.03 Place

Notice of Mestings 5.04

Order of Business at Mactings 5.05

5.06 Action without Neeting

ARTICLE 6

Board of Directors Number 6.01

6.02	Term	
6.03	Removal	
6.04	Vaccapates	
6.05	Compensation	
6.06	Louista and Darres	
6.07	Actions of Board of	Directors

- Nomination of Disastors
 7.01 Nomination and Blackish of Directors
 7.02 Nominating Committee

 - Nomination of Candidates and Posting of Names 7.03
 - Election 7.04

ARTICLE 8

- Meetings of Directors 8.01 Raggier Meetings 8.03 Special Meetings

 - 8.03 Quorum
 - 9.04 Voting Requirement
 - 8.05 Open Meetings
 - 8.06 Executive Session

ARTICLE 9

Committees

- 9.01
- 9.02
- Appointed by Sound of Directors
 Authority of Committees and Committeemen 9.03
- Mumbership Committee 9.04

ARTICLE 10

Officers

- 10.01 Enumeration of Officers
- 10.02 THED.
- 10.03 Resignation and Removal Multiple Offices Companiention
- 10,04
- 10.05

ARTICLE 11

President

- 11.01 Election
- 11.02 Duties

Vice President 12.01 Election

12.02 Duties

article 13

Secretary

13.01 Election 13.02 Duties Election

ARTICLE 14

Treasurer

14.01 Election

14.02 Duties

ASTICLE 15

Books and Records

15.01 Maintenance 15.02 Inspection

ARTICLE 16

16.01 Amendments

OFFICE

- 1.01 Principal Diffice. The principal office of the Association shall be at located at 9320 Old River Court West, Montgomery, Taxes 7/356, the Association may have such other offices, either in Taxes of elsewhere, as the Board of Directors may determine. The Board of Directors may change the location of any office of the Association. Meetings of Members and the Board of Directors may be held at such places within Montgomery County, Texas as may be designated by the board of Directors.
- 1.02 Other Offices. The corporation may also have offices at such other places both within and without the State of Texas as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.

AMERICA 2

PEPRETTIONS

- 2.01 "Association" shall mean and refer to Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, its successors and assigns.
- 2.02 "Subdivision" shall mean and refer to that certain real property known as Riverstone Points Section One Subdivision as described in the Declaration of Coverants, Conditions and Declarations (the "Declaration"), filed with the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Taxas, under Clark's File No. 2006-033612, as may be amended in the Official Public Records of Montgomery County, Taxas, and such additions therato as may be receptive be brought within the jurisdistion of the Association pursuant to said Declaration or substituent Declarations filed of record by the Declaration.
- 2.03 "Common Area" shall mean all real property designated on the plat of the Subdivision and owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners of property in the Subdivision.
- 2.04 "Lot" shall mean and refer to the lots of land shown upon the recorded plat of the Subdivision and described in the Declaration.
- 2.05 "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entitles, of the fee simple title to any Lot which is a part of the Subdivision, including contract

AND THE PERSONS AND ASSESSMENT AND

purchasers, but excluding times having such interest nevely as recurity for the performance of an obligation as more fully described in the Declaration.

- 2.06 "Declerant" shall meen and seles to Southlake Center, L.L.C., its successors and adeless in successors or essigns should acquire the observationed lots from the Deplement for the purpose of development.
- 2.07 "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to the Subdivision as filed in the office of the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Texas in Clerk's File No. 2005-055612 of the Official Public Records of Montgomery County, Texas, together with any amendments thereto.
- 2.08 "Member" shall meen and geler to those persons entitled to membership in the Assettation as provided in the Declaration.

RESTELL 3

CURITY TOUT TOUR SOUR MEMBERSHIP

- 3.01 Mambership. The membership of the legogistion shall consist of all the conters of the less within the Subdivision or brought within the scheme of the Restrictions for the Subdivision pursuant to the provisions and authority of waid Americations, which is subject to a maintenance charge same spant by the Declarant or assigns, including contract putchasers. The foregoing is not intended to include parabons or entitles who hald as interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation. Hembership shall be appearement to and may not be appeared from ownership of any lot which is subject to sectorment by the Association under the Restrictions.
- 3.02 Proof of Membership. The rights of membership shall not be exercised by any parable missi satisfactory proof has been furnished to the Secretary of the Association that the person is qualified as a Newber. Such proof may commune of a copy of a duly executed and acknowledged Dead or field insurance policy evidencing ownership of a Lot or lots in the Subdivision. Such deed or policy shall be deemed conclusive in the absence of a conflicting claim based on a later deed or policy.
- 3.03 No Additional Qualification. The sols qualification for membership shall be ownership of a Lot or Lots in the Subdivision. No initiation fees, costs, or ques shall be assessed against any person as a condition of numbership except such assessments, levies, and charges as are specifically authorized under the Restrictions.

Onemand and the same of the same

3.04 Contificates of Membership. The Board of Directors may provide for the immembership in the Association which spain the is such form as may be deparatized by the Board. All cartificates avidencing membership shall be consecutively numbered. This same and address of ment Nember and the date of issuance of the Cartificate shall be impared on the records of the Association and maintained by the Secretary at the registered office of the Resociation.

APPRECIA

VORTER MICHER

- 4.01 Voting. Voting shall be a one vote per lot best. The owner or owners of each lot are entitled to one vote for each lot owned in the Subdivision. If record title to a particular lot or lots is in the name of web as more persons, all commers shall be Hambers and may attend any meeting of the Assectation but the voting rights appartenant to each such lot or tract may not be divided and fractional rotes shall not be allowed. Any one of said co-owners may exercise the vote appartenant to each such lot or tract so owned at any according of the Hembers and such some shall be binding and conclusive as all of the other co-owners of said lot or tract who are not present; provided, if one of the non-strending co-owners has given the Assectation notice of objection to the attending co-owner's value. In vote shall be cast for eald lot or tract except upon notice of unalimous consent by all such co-owners being given to the Association. In the event more than one vote is cast for a single lot of tract by an owner, none of the votes so cast shall be counted and all of such votes shall be deemed void.
- 4.02 Proxima. At all mentings of Mambars, each Member may vote in person of My proxim. All proxims shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary of the Madocistion. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically course on conveyance by the Member of his Lot, or on receipt of notice by the Sacretary of the death or judicially declared indespetence of such Member. No proxy shall be valid after elsewh [11] months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise specifically provided in the proxy.
- 4.03 Quartit. The appearance, either in person or by proxy, at any meeting, of Hembers Ministed to case at least ten (101) percent of the total votes of the Ministed Shell constitute a quorum for any action. In the absence of a quorum at a meeting of Nembers, a majority of those Members present in person or by proxy may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) days nor more than forty-five (45) days from the meeting date.
- 4.04 Required Vota. The vote of the majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the Nembers present, or represented by proxy, at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act

PRINCIPAL VIOLENCE ----

of the meeting of the Members, unless the vete of a greater number is required by statute.

4.05 Completive Wolfabi Completies voting shall not be permitted during the election of Directors.

ACCURAGE S

AUTOMOR OF MONEY

- 5.01 Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Members of the Association shall be held within one year of the date of Incorporation of the association, and thereafter, the annual meeting of the Herbers of the Association shall be held between the 15th and the 28th day of January of each succeeding calendar year. If the day for the snauel meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be hald at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal heliday (excluding Saturday and Sunday),
- 5.02 Special Mantings. Special meetings of the Mambers may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or by Mambers representing at least ten (10%) percent of the total votes entitled to be cast by the Members.
- 5.03 Place. Mestings of the Mesbers shall be held within the Subdivision or at a meeting place as close thereto as possible as the Board may specify in writing.
- 5.04 Notice of Meatings. Written notice of all Members' meetings shall be given by on at the direction of the Secretary of the Association (of other persons authorized to call the meeting) by mailing or personally delivering a copy of such notice at least ten (10) but not make them fifty (10) days before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting; addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the dature of the business to be undertaken. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Number at the to the Number at the eddings lest appearing on the books of the Association with postage thorson paid.
- 5.05 Order of Business at Meetings. The order of business at all meetings of the Hambers shall be as follows:
 - (1) Roll calls
 - (2) Proof of mostpe of meeting of waiver of notice; (3) Reading of Minutes of preceding meeting; (4) Reports of officers;

 - (5) Reports of committees;

CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE

- Bledtion of directors:
- Unfinished bodiness, and (7)
- New business. (8)
- 5.06 Action without Meeting. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing; setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Members and filed with the Secretary of the Association.

AMERICA :

Boldin of Danierotte

- 6.01 Number. The afferire of the Resociation shall be managed by the Sourd of Directors consisting of three (3) persons, all of whom must be members of the Association.
- 6.02 Taxe. At the first meeting of the Association, the Directors set forth in the Articles of Incorporation who small hold Directors set forth in the Articles of Encomporation who shell held office until the first annual meeting of Manuals of Directors by the Manuals. At the first annual meeting of Manuals, one (1) Director shall be elected to serve on the Mound for a one (1) year term and one (1) Director shall be elected to serve on the Mound for a three (3) year term. The terms of the Directors shall be staggered so that the terms of the Directors shall be staggered so that the terms of the Directors shall not result in more than two (2) Directors Swing elected in any one year. Each Director shall hold office until a successor is elected and qualified. qualified.
- 6.03 Removal. Directors may be removed from office with or without cause by a majoratty total of the Manhouse of the Association.
- 6.04 Vacanties. In the event of a vacancy on the Board caused by death, resignation, removal of a Disector, the remaining Directors shall, by majority bets, alone a successor who shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

Any directorship to be filled by reason of an impresse in the number of directors shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or at a special meeting of Hemmers called for that purpose.

- 6.05 Compensation. No Director shall receive compensation for any service he may repolar to the Association. A Director may, however, be reimbursed by the Board for actual expenses incurred by him in the performance of his duties,
- 6.06 Powers and Duties. The Board shall have the powers and duties, and shall be subject to limitations on such powers and duties, as enumerated in these Sylaws or as set forth in the

CALL AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR

Articles of Incorporation of the Association. In addition, the Board of Directors shall have the powers and Edilouing duties:

- a. cause to be heps a complete record of all its acts and corporate effairs and to present a sharement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the Members who are entitled to vote:
- b. supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
- c. as more fully provided in the Restrictions to:
 - (1) fix the amount of the annual maintenance fund assessment against each lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual sessessment period as provided in the Restrictions.
 - (2) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (3) days in advance of each amunal assessment period; and
 - (3) foreclose the lies equiest any property for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after due date or to bring an action at law against sh owner parsonally obligated to pay the same?
- d. issue, or to cause an appropriate office to issue, upon demand by any parson, a complicate acting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of those certificates. If a certificate states in assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment:
- e. procure and maintain, if possible, adequate biability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association:
- f. cause all officers of employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded; as it may deem appropriate;
- q. cause the Common Area to be maintained;
- h. cause the Restrictions of the Subdivision to be enforced and administrator
- i. employ such accountants, attorneys, contractors or other persons or entities as they deem decessary to manage and administer the affairs of the Association, and
- j. manage the affairs of the Association.

Directors shall exercise ordinary business judgment in managing the effects of the Newscarter, Directors about act as fiductaries with respect to the interpate of the Newberrs. In acting in their official capacity as directors of this Association, directors shall act in good faith and take actions they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the Association and that are not uplaceful. In all other instances, the Board of Directors shall not make any action that they should reasonably believe would be opposed to the Association's best interests or would be uplaceful. A director shall not be liable if, in the exercise of ordinary data, the director acts in good faith relying on written firmpoles, and legal statements provided by an accountant or attorney retained by the Association.

6.07 Actions of Soirs of Bitscrops. The Board of Directors shall try to act by populating. However, the vote of a majority of directors present and verting at a meeting at which a quesual is present shall be sufficient to constitute the act of the Board of Directors upless the act of a greater number is required by law or the bylaws. A director who is present at a meeting and abstains from a vote is considered to be present and voting for the purpose of determining the decision of the Board of Directors. For the purpose of determining the decision of the Board of Directors, a director who is represented by proxy in a vote is considered present.

ARELGEN 7

northwester or paraceura

- 7.01 Nomination and Flantium of Directors. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee and increased as herein sec forth.
- 7.02 Nominating Committee. At a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held no lates than Movember of each year there shell be appointed by the Seard & Committee of New regular Members of the Association, none of which shall be a weekly of each Board, as a Nominating Committee; said member of the Beard shall have the right and the privilege of hamiling one member of said Committee. In the event of the failure of any member to do so, the members of the Board present at such meeting shall appoint a sufficient humber to complete said Committee, which Committee shall be charged with the duty of nominating candidates for members of the Board of Directors to be elected at the next annual meeting. No member of the Nominating Committee shall serve combicutive terms on that Committee. No member of the Membership Committee any be nominated for the position of Board Member while serving on the Nominating Committee. The Board of Directors at seld members shall fix the time and place of the meeting of such Nominating Committee, but the date fixed for such meeting of such Nominating Committee, but the date fixed for such meeting of such Nominating Committee, but the date fixed for such meeting at such members than thirty-one (31) days prior to the date of the summed election. The Secretary shall

immediately notify in writing gack of the members of such Numinating Committee of FLE telephotics and of the time and place of the neeting of the Committee. The Woodsering Committee shall meet at the time and place designated. A parjective of the nominating Committee shall govern the action and description of the Committee tach nomines mint reprive a minimum of Four affirmative votes and must not be in difficult of any fees dust have nesteriation.

- 7.03 Remination of Tunchindra and Fostion of Rames. The Nominating Committee shall at least twenty (20) days before the annual election, mail to the members the names of the candidates selected by it to fill the plants of outgoing members of the Secretary of the Association a list of much members. No member shall be nominated who has served more than three constructive terms next proceeding. Other candidates have be nominated by fill seid places, or any of them, by period a signed by at laids ben fill seid places, or any of them, by period at laids seven (7) days before the annual election and provided and such desired is a number not in default on any fews due the Association. Upon receiving such period on, the Secretary shall fortheith cause the same to be added to the list of nominated by the Secretary shall fortheith cause the same to be added to the list of nominated by the Demittee or by petition, if any, shall be printed on the official habits then as such ejection and none of such hames may be extendible then as such ejection and none of such hames may be extendible then as such ejection and none of such hames may be extendible then as such ejection and none of such hames may be extendible along the manner as the Secretary shall names shall be arranged alphabitically of the ballet. At least five (5) days prior to the said of the same secretary shall mail a copy of such official ballot to each Ramber.
- 7.04 Election. Districts are elected at the enqual marting of Members of the Council. Sumbars, or these process, may cast, in respect to each vacuat directorship, as many these as they are entitled to exercise under the processing of the Deckeration. The nominees receiving the highest number of vaces shall be elected. No Member may cumulate votes.

ANTICLE B

MARKET OF DESCRIPTION

- 8.01 Regular Mackings. Regular mackings of the Board of Directors shall be hold spartically at such place and as such time as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Notice of the time and place of bisch menting shall be delivered to each member of the Board of Directors not less than three (3) nor more than thirty (30) days before the date of the menting.
- 8.02 Special Montifier. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by written notice signed by the Secretary of the Board of Directors or by any two Directors other

O-MANIMENTAL CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE

then the Secretary. The notice shall equally the time and place of the meeting and the service of any special business to be considered. Notice of my apartial meeting must be given to each Director not less than these (\$1 days, or make than thirty (36) days prior to the days fixed for such meeting by written notice delivered personally or ment by mail or talegram to each Director at his address as shown in the seconds of the Association.

- 8.03 Quotum. A quotum for the transaction of business by the Board of Directors shall be the lesser of either a majority of the number of Directors constituting the Board of Directors as fixed by these Bylaws or four.
- 8.04 Voting Empirement. The act of the majority of Directors present at a marting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless any prevision of the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylave requires the vote of a greater number.
- 8.05 Other Maetines. Regular and special meetings of the Board shall be open to all Manbers of the Association provided, however, that Association Musbers who are not on the Board may not participate in any deliberation or dispussion unless expressly so authorized by the bote of a majority of a querum of the Scard.
- 8.06 Executive Seasion. The Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote on personnel matters, litigation in which the Assertation is or may become involved, and other business of a confidential neutre. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive mession shall first be announced in open session.

AMERICAN D

COMMITTERS

- 9.01 Appointed by Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall appoint such committees as are required by the Restrictions. The Board may from them to time establish and appoint to such other committees as it shall deem microscopy and advisable to assist the Board in the general operation and management of the Association. The Chairman and all Management of such committee must be a mamber of the Association.
- 9.02 Authority of Committees. The Board of Directors may grant to any committee thus assablished by the Board such authority and power consistent with these Bylans as the Board shall deem required to carry out the intended surposes and functions of such committee.

- 9.03 Discharge of Committees and Committees of The House of Directors may discharge and Committees and Salished by the Board and may remove and replace and committees appointed to any committee.
- 9.04 Membership Committee. This Committee shall pass upon all applications for membership and negotic of the same with recommendations to the board of nifettors. All applications for membership shall be deposited with the Secretary for delivery to the Committee.

100 Com 10

CHACOLE

- 10.01 Enguitation of Officers. The Officers of this Association (who shall at all times is manhers of the Board of Directors) shall be a Freezipens, a Vice President and a Secretary and Tressurer. The Board of Directors may, be resolution, create such other offices as it deems necessary of desirable.
- 10.02 Term. The Officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and much shall hold office for a term of one year, unless such officer shall sooner resign, be removed, or be officerwise disqualified to serve.
- 10.03 Resignation and Removal. May Officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation small being officer at the date of receipt of such notice or at any lates time specified therein. Any officer may be removed from effice by the aband themser, in the Board's judgment, the best interpents of the Respiration would be served by such removal.
- 10.04 Multiple Offices are two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the stilless of Frankloop and Secretary.
- 10.05 Compensation. Officers shall not receive compensation for services rendered to the Association.

APPROVED 11

PURENTA

- 11.01 Election. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Hembers, the Board shall elect one of the number to act as President.
 - 11.02 Dubies. The Procident shalls

S Vanction COSPANIES TO COSPANIES

n a si^e in sa 🗐 e

- (a) Provide over all meetings of the Manhaum and of the Board;
- (b) Sign of Prostings all cheeks contracts, and other instruments in writing thick were been first approved by the Board, unless the charts by dally subject resulution, has authorized the signature of a labour officer;
- (c) Call meetings of the Board whenever he doesn it necessary in accordance with this and on notice agreed to by the board. The notice period shall, with the exception of emergencies, in no event be late than this (1) days and
- (d) Have, subject to the addice of the board, general supervision, dispetition and bentrol of the affairs of the Association and displaying such other durates as may be required of him by the Board.

DEPTOTA 12

VACE PRESENTA

- 12.01 Election. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Hembers, the Board shall elect one of its members to act as vice President.
 - 12.02 Duties. The Vice President shall:
 - (a) Act in the place and in the stand of the President in the event of his absence; inshillity, or refused to act; and
 - (b) Exercise and discharge such other disting as may be required of him by rise Bland. In democration with any such additional dubies, the vice president shall be responsible to the President.

MATOR IS

SHOWERS

- 13.01 Election. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Members, the Board shall elect a Secretary.
 - 13.02 Diries The Secretary shall:
 - (a) Keep a record of all mestings and proceedings of the Board and of the Himbers;
 - (b) Keep the seal of the Association, if any, and affix it on all papers requiring said deal;

G COMPANY OF THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY A

- (c) Serve such notices of peethops of the Board and the Members required either by law or by these bylaws:
- (d) Keep appropriate with their addieses, and
- (e) Sign as Smoratery all dueds, contractly and other instruments in writing thick have been first approved by the Board if said instruments require a second Resociation signature, unless the Saund has authorized another officer to sign in the place and stead of the Secretary by doly adopted resolution.

THERESER

- 14.01 Election. At the first meeting of the Board shall elect a Treasurer.
 - 14.02 Duties. The Treasurer shall:
 - (a) Receive and deposit in such bank or banks as the Board may from time to time direct, all of the funds of the Association;
 - (b) He responsible for, and supervise the maintenance of, books and records to account for such finds and other Association assets:
 - (c) Disburse and withdraw said funds as the Board may from time to time direct, and in secondance with prescribed procedures; and
 - (d) Prepare and distribute the financial statements for the Association required by the Restrictions.

ARTHUR 13

BOOKS AND MICORDS

15.01 Maintenance. Complete and correct records of account and minutes of processings of measures of Members, Directors, and committees shall be kept at the registered office of the Association. A record containing the names and addresses of all Members entitled to make shall be kept at the registered office or principle place of business of the Association.

15.02 Inspection. The feathletions of the Smidly sion, the Articles of Incorporation and the Sylans of the Association, the numbership register, the books of equium, and the minutes of proceedings, shall be swallable for inspection and copying by any Member of the Association or say Diseases for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

APPRILIT 16

16.01 Amendments. These Bylave may be medified, altered, amended, or repealed and new Sylave adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors or by a majority vote of those Members present and voting, in person or by prove, at any annual or special meeting or election called for their purposes provided, however, that a statement of the proposed medifications, alterations, amendments, as repeal and proposed new Bylave signed by either the Board of Directors at by the Collivaries to the Board of Directors at least twenty (20) days hefore the date of such meeting or elections and it shall be the duty of the scape of Directors to cause a copy of such proposed modifications, alterations, amendments, or repeal and proposed modifications and the busks of the Association at lease seven (7) days before such meeting or election.

Athentation

	8	WEDG	agerton.			
Adopted	by:	the _, 2007	Board	of.	Directors	02
				Storeta	EÀ	
STATE OF TEXAS	4.5	8	¥			
COUNTY OF MONTGO	MDDA .	\$				
This instru	ment was	acimo 2007.	ledged by	efore me	on the	day
of Riverstone Point capacity therein	e Section stated.	n One E	topesty (Woers A	Sociation, i	n the

Notary Public, State of Texas

G-whitelest and the state of th

13

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION RULES, REGULATIONS AND POLICIES REGARDING COLLECTIONS AND FINES

GENERAL

Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association ("the Association") is a Subdivision Regime established by a Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions Declaration filed of record in the Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas. These Rules, Regulations and Policies are made and adopted pursuant to the authority granted by the Declaration and the By-Laws, and pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Directors/Managers by the Texas Property Code. For the purpose of these Rules, Regulations and Policies, the term Owner shall include individual owners and co-owners of lots located within Riverstone Pointe.

The following Rules, Regulations and Policies are effective June 1, 2010, and are applicable to Owners, tenants, families, and guests. All Owners are responsible for the instruction and supervision of their families, tenants, and/or guests as to the provisions of all of the Rules, Regulations and Policies, the Bylaws, and the Declaration, and Owners must provide a copy of these documents to their tenant(s).

COLLECTIONS POLICY

- All maintenance assessments and related charges are due in full on the first (15th) of each January.
- All assessments and related charges are late if not paid by 5 p.m. on the fifteenth (15TH) day of January each year.
- 3. Any assessments and related charges remaining unpaid on an Owner's account at 5 p.m. on the fifteenth (15th) day of each January shall be subject to a late charge equal to 10% of the amount assessed. In addition, interest will accrue on the unpaid balance at the highest rate allowed by law.
- 4. If there is any account balance due on an assessment account for any home after the fifteenth (15th) day of each January, the managing agent may send a notice advising the Owner that the assessment is late and it must be paid within thirty (30) days. In such event, the managing agent will inform the Owner of the Owner's right to dispute the amount shown to be due before the Board, if a written request to do so is received within thirty (30) days of receipt of the letter. The letter will also inform the Owner that after 45 days (giving a date certain), if the account remains unpaid, it is subject to being turned over to the attorney for the Association to begin formal collection activities.

- Any assessment remaining unpaid for (90) days, or any account accruing five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or more in assessments, late charges, collection charges, and/or interest will be turned over to the Association's attorney for collection.
- 6. All attorney fees, court costs, and other related charges of collection incurred by either the management company or the Association's attorney will be charged to the delinquent Owner's account. All such charges will be added to the amount of the assessments and collected as if they were assessments.
- Once turned over to the Association's attorney, the attorney will be authorized to send a demand letter demanding payment for the account, plus the attorney's fees for such demand letter, within thirty (30) days of such letter.
- 8. If the Owner does not pay the account in full within the time required by the attorney's initial demand letter, the attorney is authorized to send a second letter demanding payment in full, plus the attorney's additional fees for the second demand letter, within ten (10) days, and if not so paid, a lawsuit may be filed against the Owner to collect all monies due and to seek foreclosure on the Owner's property.
- 9. If the assessments are not paid in full in accordance with the above demands, the attorney is authorized to file a lawsuit seeking the monies due, in addition to all assessments, late fees, attorney fees, court costs and interest which come due during the pendency of the lawsuit, and to seek an Order allowing the foreclosure of the Owner's Unit.
- 10. If a judgment is taken against the Owner, and arrangements have not been made by the Owner to pay the account by the foreclosure day noticed in the posting notice, the property may be foreclosed and sold at foreclosure sale. The association may bid in at such sale by and through its attorney.
- 11. The Board President, Treasurer, and the property manager are authorized to appoint the Association's attorney(s) as Trustee/Substitute Trustee to notice and hold the sale.
- 12. After foreclosure, the lender holding the first lien on the property, and the owner will be notified of the Association's action, at the last known addresses on file with the Association or any other address located by the Association's attorney.
- 13. If after foreclosure, an Owner or his tenant continues to occupy the unit, a forcible detainer case will be filed seeking possession.

- 14. The Association's attorney may be authorized to file a deficiency suit against the Owner whose unit has been foreclosed, but who still owe a balance of assessments to the Association.
- 15. At all times during the collection process, the Association's attorney is authorized to enter into reasonable payment arrangements with Owners in an attempt to collect the obligation owed to the Association, and may charge a fee for an agreement reflecting the payment arrangement. In the absence of a reasonable payment schedule, or full payment of the assessment account, the Association's attorney is authorized to complete the entire collection process without necessity of further instruction or authorization.
 - 16. At all stages of collection, payments made by Co-Owners will be applied to the collection costs first, then to the oldest balance on the Owner's account. The "balance" shall include, without differentiation, maintenance assessments, late charges, interest, attorney fees, maintenance chargebacks, fines, penalties, insurance, and insurance deductibles.

FINES POLICY

Fines may be imposed against Lot Co-Owner(s) or any infraction of the Declaration, By-Laws, or these Rules, Regulations and Policies by Owners, occupants or their guests.

This policy will become effective June 1, 2010. The fine structure will be as follows:

First Infraction: Thirty (30) Day Warning Notice (except where stated otherwise in these Rules, Regulations and Policies).

Second Infraction: \$25.00 fine

Third Infraction: \$50.00 fine

If an Owner receives warning or fine, the Owner will have the right to request a meeting with the Board, in writing, within thirty days of your receipt of the warning or fine. In addition, after the first warning, if the matter is not cured or reoccurs, the Board may refer the matter to the Association's attorney without further warning. In the event of fineable act or omission which threatens the health, safety or welfare of other residents or guest, the matter may be turned over to the Association's attorney without sending a warning. If the matter is referred to the Association's attorney, the Owner will be responsible for payment of all legal fees incurred.

If the offense reoccurs or continues after the third notice, the Association will continue to assess a \$100.00 fine every month the violation exists, or each time it re-occurs until abated, and the Board may refer the matter to the Association's attorney. All fees, including all attorney's fees incurred by the Association in enforcing the governing

documents and these Rules, Regulations and Polices, will be charged to the Owner of the property at which the violation occurred, and will be added to the Owner's account balance.

The Fine Policy conditions are as follows:

- No one will be fined without the Association first sending a ten (10) day warning notice to the Owner (if known). (DOES NOT APPLY TO VANDALISM, GRAFFITI, FIREWORKS, GATE DAMAGE, POOL AREA DAMAGE, AND ITEMS NECESSITATIONG IMMEDIATE INTERVENTION, WHICH MAY BE SUBJECT TO IMMEDIATE FINES OR REFERRAL TO LEGAL COUNSEL).
- 2. Anyone who is fined will be given a reasonable opportunity to respond to the charge.
- To dispute a fine, the Owner must request in writing a meeting with the Board postmarked no later than (30) days from the date of the letter imposing the fine, setting forth the specific nature of the Owner's dispute.
- Notification will be sent to the writer of the letter informing him or her of the date of the Board meeting when the dispute will be discussed.
- The Owner filing the dispute will be placed on the Board Meeting agenda and the Owner will be allowed a reasonable period of time to present his or her reasons why the fine should not be imposed or should be abated.
- The Board's decision after the hearing is final and any affirmed or non-appealed fine will be due and payable on the first of the next month after notification.
- Should any offenses reoccur within twelve months after the first occurrence of a similar violation, no ten (10) day notice will be given, and the appropriate fine will be immediately imposed.
- 8. Any Owner who has more than two (2) violations within a sixty day period which are a result of the Owner's tenants, will be required to provide written proof of notices and action taken against any tenant(s) committing violations against the Association. The Association may request a meeting with the Owner, or take legal action to enforce the Declarations, By-Laws, or these Rules, Regulations and Policies.

Exceptions to Fines Schedule:

Force mows:

 Initial notice sent with ten (10) day request to correct or Riverstone Pointe will "force mow" the property as allowed under section 3.19 of the Declarations, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Riverstone Pointe, Section One. A fine of \$50 will be assessed in addition to the actual mowing costs to the association.

Adopted by unanimous vote of the Board of Directors for Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association at a meeting held on May 15, 2010

Board of Directors Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association

Bv:

Robert Howell, President

Michael Massey, Vice President

Paige Gerich /Treasurer

Floyd Lareau, Secretary

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ZERO LOT LINE ACCESS POLICY

A five (5) foot building easement is provided along the zero lot line side of each zero lot line property in the subdivision. This easement is to be used only by the zero lot line property owner and his designated contractors. That use is restricted to the construction, repair and maintenance of the exterior side wall, roof and/or foundation of the zero lot line house. The owner using this easement shall be responsible for any damages caused by his use, including the repair of any fencing or wall, any drainage system, sprinkler system and any landscaping in the easement. The easement when used must be left clean and neat at the completion of the work performed. At least fifteen (15) days prior to the initiation of any use of the easement, the owner and the POA's management company must be notified in writing and that notification must outline in adequate detail the estimated start and completion dates of the use and the specific plans for use of the easement. At the POA's discretion, the management company may intervene and resolve any conflicts between the parties regarding the work outlined and the time proposed for its completion. The notified property owner may at his option notify the zero lot line property owner and remove any fencing and take steps to protect his landscaping before work begins. The zero lot line property owner who uses the easement is subject to any fines and penalties that may be levied by the POA Board for any violation of this zero lot line easement policy.

Adopted by unanimous vote of the Board of Directors for Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc., at a meeting held on <u>February 25, 2011.</u>

card of Directors	
Iverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, in	ıc
y: Dol Howell	_
Bob Howell, President	
Michael Massey	-
Michael Massey, Vice President	
Paige Gerich, Treasurer	
Fland Lareau	
Floyd Lareau, Secretary	

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. RECORDS RETENTION POLICY

This Records Retention Policy was approved by the Board of Directors for RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association, Inc., on the 4th day of November, 2011.

The Association shall maintain its records as follows:

RECORD	RETENTION PERIOD			
Certificate of Formation/Articles of Incorporation, By Laws, Declaration and all amendments to those documents.	PERMANENT			
Association Tax Returns and Tax Audits	SEVEN (7) YEARS			
Financial Books and Records	SEVEN (7) YEARS			
Account Records of Current Owners	FIVE (5) YEARS			
Contracts with a term of more than one year	FOUR (4) YEARS AFTER CONTRACT EXPIRES			
Minutes of Member Meetings and Board Meetings	SEVEN (7) YEARS			

Records not listed above are not subject to retention. Upon expiration of the retention date, the applicable record will be considered not maintained as a part of the Association books and records.

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION CERTIFICATION

"I, the undersigned, being the President of the RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association, Inc., hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by at least a majority of the Association Board of Directors."

Printed Name: P.W. HOWELL

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

JDH ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT 1776 Woodstead Court #103 The Woodshads, TX 77380

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. <u>PAYMENT PLAN POLICY</u>

This payment plan was approved by the Board of Directors for Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc., on the 4th day of November, 2011.

- 1) Owners are entitled to one approved payment plan to pay their annual assessments.
- 2) All payment plans require a down payment and monthly payments.
- 3) Upon request, all owners are automatically approved for a payment plan consisting of 20% down with the balance paid off in 12 monthly installments.
- 4) If an owner defaults on the payment plan, the payment plan is automatically terminated and the Association is not obligated to make another payment plan with the owner for the next two years.
- Alternative payment plan proposals must be submitted to and approved by the Association. The Association is not obligated to approve alternative payment plan proposals. No proposed payment plan may be shorter than 3 months or longer than 18 months.
- 6) The Association can not charge late fees during the course of a payment plan, but can charge interest at the rate it is entitled to under its Governing Documents and can charge reasonable costs of administering the payment plan. The term of a payment plan cannot be less than three months or more than 18 months.

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION CERTIFICATION

"I, the undersigned, being the President of the RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners
Association, Inc., hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by at least a majority of
the Association Board of Directors."

-

President

Print Name: 72. W. HOWELL

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

JDH ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT 1776 Woodstead Court #103

The Woodlands, TX 77380

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. RECORDS PRODUCTION POLICY

This Records Production Policy was approved by the Board of Directors for RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association, Inc., on the 4th day of November, 2011.

- I. Copies of Association records will be available to all Owners upon their proper request and at their own expense. A proper request:
 - a. is sent certified mail to the Association's address as reflected in its most recent management certificate:
 - b. is from an Owner, or the Owner's agent, attorney, or certified public accountant; and
 - c. contains sufficient detail to identify the records being requested.
- II. Owners may request to inspect the books and records or may request copies of specific records.
 - If the owner makes a request to inspect the books and records, then the Association will respond within 10 business days of the request, providing the dates and times the records will be made available and the location of the records. The Association and the owner shall arrange for a mutually agreeable time to conduct the inspection. The Association shall provide the owner with copies of specific documents upon the owner paying the Association the cost thereof.
 - If an owner makes a request for copies of specific records, and the Association can
 provide the records easily or with no cost, then the Association will provide the
 records to the owner within 10 business days of the owner's request.
 - If the owner makes a request for copies of specific records, the Association shall send a response letter advising on the date that the records will be made available (within 15 business days) and the cost the owner must pay before the records will be provided. Upon paying the cost to provide the records, the Association shall provide the records to the owner.

III. The Association hereby adopts the following schedule of costs:

COPIES

10 cents per page, for regular 8.5" X 11" page 50 cents per page for pages 11" X 17" or greater

Actual cost, for specialty paper (color, photograph, map, etc...)

LABOR

\$15.00 per hour for actual time to locate, compile and reproduce the

records (can only be charged if request is greater than 50 pages in

length)

OVERHEAD

20% of the total labor charge (can only be charged if request is greater

than 50 pages in length)

MATERIALS

actual costs of labels, boxes, folders, and other supplies used in producing the records, along with postage for mailing the records

IV. The Association hereby adopts the following form of response to Owners who request to inspect the Association's books and Records:

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ASSOCIATION RECORDS

Date

Dear Homeowner:

On (date), the RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association received your request to inspect the books and records of the Association. The books and records of the Association are available for you to inspect on regular business days, between the hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. at the office of JDH Association Management, 1776 Woodstead Court #103, The Woodlands, Texas.

Please contact the Association manager at (281) 457-5341 to arrange for a mutually agreeable time for you to come and inspect the books and records. Please be advised that if you desire copies of specific records during or after the inspection, you must first pay the associated costs before the copies will be provided to you. A schedule of costs is included with this response.

Very Truly Yours,
RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

V. The Association hereby adopts the following form of response to Owners who request copies of specific records:

RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ASSOCIATION RECORDS

Date

Dear Homeowner:

On (date), the RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association received your request for copies of specific Association records. We are unable to provide you with the requested records within 10 business days of your request. However, the requested records will be available to you no later than 15 business days after the date of this response.

In order to obtain the records, you must first pay the Association the cost of providing the records to you. The estimated cost to obtain the records you requested is \$_____. Upon receiving payment, the Association will mail the requested documents to you. You may also make payment and pick up the documents in person at the office of JDH Association Management, 1776 Woodstead Court #103, The Woodlands, Texas

Very Truly Yours, RIVERSTONE POINTE PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

- VI. If the estimated cost provided to the Owner is more or less than the actual cost of producing the documents, the Association shall, within 30 days after providing the records, submit to the owner either an invoice for additional amounts owed or a refund of the overages paid by the Owner.
- VII. Unless authorized in writing or by court order, the Association will not provide copies of any records that contain the personal information of an owner, including restriction violations, delinquent assessments, financial information, and contact information.

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION CERTIFICATION

"I, the undersigned, being the President of the RIVERSTONE POINTE Property Owners Association Inc., hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by at least a majority of the Association Board of Directors."

By: L. W. groupelf, President

Print Name: R.W. HOWELL

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

JDH ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT 1776 Woodstead Court #103 The Woodshads, TX 77380



Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc.

P.O. Box 291, Montgomery, DX 77356

Phone: 936-931-8047

Email: President.Riverstone@gmail.com

Last Update: September 2012

Instructions to ACC Applicants

The POA is responsible for the enforcement of all provisions of the subdivision's rules and regulations including its Deed Restrictions (formally titled "Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Riverstone Pointe One"). Copies of applicable documents are available for download on the POA's website. The POA maintains an Architectural Control Committee (ACC) for the administration of its responsibilities. The ACC is comprised of the four members of the Board of Directors. The Vice President serves as Chair and runs all ACC operations.

When performing initial construction (all physical plant, landscaping and grounds) or later altering an existing construction, individual lot owners are responsible for compliance with all Deed Restrictions and other rules and regulations. This responsibility exists whether or not they seek the participation and approval of the POA's Architectural Control Committee. Should the lot owner choose to proceed without the participation of the ACC, the POA reserves the right to enforce its Deed Restrictions at any time regardless of the consequences to the lot owner.

To avoid the risk of violation notices and costly enforcement actions, the POA recommends that, BEFORE launching a project – whether for new construction or for alteration of existing construction – that involves ANY meaningful activity or expenditure of funds, the lot owner:

- Familiarize himself fully with the POA's Deed Restrictions and any other pertinent rules and regulations as they could apply to the project
- Engage the ACC through submission of an application for approval of the project.

The ACC process insures the lot owner of protection from future claims from the POA of non-compliance once a project is approved and completed within the scope of an ACC approval.

Appropriate Application Form:

Applicants should employ one of two application forms:

- Form 1: New Construction (including additions attached to existing residences)
- Form 2: Alterations and Additions (excluding additions attached to existing residences)

Each of these forms is available for download from the POA website. Each form calls for an explanation of the proposed project together with:

- Adequate scaled drawings to fully position and display the project on the lot and in relation to existing structures
- Samples of the materials to be employed and/or references and photographs of the materials and colors
- How the applicant intends to meet the requirements for proper execution of the project (See section below for explanation of requirements)

Application Fees:

Beyond basic Committee level administrative affairs, any operational expenses incurred by the ACC in the processing of applications must be borne by individual applicants. POA board members will not charge for their time in executing their duties on the ACC. However, if they incur out-of-pocket expenses in the course of their work, they will be reimbursed for those costs and the costs will be borne by the applicant.

In the case of new construction, there are fees and escrow amounts that are due with the submission of the application. They are spelled out in the application form. In the case of alternations and additions, the applicant commits to pay the ACC for any out-of-pocket costs it incurs in the processing of the application. Typically there will not be any such expenses and therefore no fees. However, payment of any expenses invoiced to the lot owner will be required before approval can be finalized.

The ACC has engaged one consultant – David Whiteley – on a continuing as needed basis to assist it: (a) in the evaluation of applications, (b) in the monitoring of project executions and/or (c) in the closeout of projects. As needed, the ACC will also engage other third parties to address project issues it encounters that it feels require special expertise.

David Whiteley is available to any lot owner who wishes assistance in the (a) evaluation of their project; (b) the applicability of Deed Restrictions; and/or (c) the preparation of the project application for ACC approval. The lot owner will to pay David directly for any services he renders. David's contact information is:

David Whiteley
Whiteley & Whiteley Design Group
16955 Walden Rd.
Ste. 125
Montgomery, TX 77356
Email: whiteley@consolidated.net

Cell: (936) 582-6888 Office: (936) 582-6888

Timely Receipt and Processing of Application:

Deed Restrictions protect the lot owner in the ACC's processing of an application. The ACC is required to respond to an application within 30 days of its receipt. If the lot owner receives no feedback within 30 days, approval is automatically granted.

The ACC can either deny an application or find it deficient and ask the lot owner for a resubmission. In the latter cases, the time clock for processing is stopped on the mailing date of the ACC statement of deficiency and a new 30 day clock is started upon the ACC's receipt of an application that resolves the stated deficiencies.

Any lot owner launching a project activity prior to receipt of a written project approval from the ACC) does so totally at his own risk.

Rules for Execution of Approved Application:

Once a project is approved, the lot owner and his contractors agree to follow "Guidelines for Execution of ACC Approved Projects." These guidelines are available for download from the POA website and address such matters as:

- Allowable working hours
- Parking of contractor vehicles
- Acceptable noise levels
- Storage and disposal of construction waste
- Confirmation of construction compliance with approved plans (e.g., location of building foundation)
- Reporting of damage to POA property (streets, curbs, individual lot owner property, etc.)
- Lot owner proposals to ACC for and ACC approved repairs of damaged property

The lot owner ultimately is responsible for compliance with the rules for execution of an approved project. He is also responsible for the cost of repairing any damage to other lot owner property and/or POA common property caused by the execution of the project. Finally he is responsible for the payment of any fines and any penalties that may be imposed in conjunction with the ACC's enforcement of the owner's responsibilities.

Authorizing POA Board Members

Michael J. Massey President	Paige Gerich Secretary Treasurer
Signature	nael J. Massey on Jan 10, 2013
	Signature, Notary Public - State of Texas
JUDY C DUERER My Commission Expires June 1, 2015	
Signature Paige Gerich	
	ge Gevich on Jan 10, 201

Signature, Notary Public - State of Texas

JUDY C DUERER
My Commission Expires
June 1, 2015

After Recording, Return to: Riverstone Pointe POA P.O. Box 291 Montgomery, TX 77356-0291



Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc.

P.O. Box 291, Montgomery, DX 77356

Phone: 936-931-8047

Email: President.Riverstone@gmail.com

Last Update: September, 2012

Rules for Execution of ACC Approved Projects

This document contains a set of basic rules for new construction and for improvements to property in the Riverstone Pointe subdivision. These are minimum requirements and the builder/contractor is encouraged to exceed the expectations of the neighborhood.

Site Preparation (New Construction):

The builder shall provide the following items in preparation for either construction of a new residence, construction of an addition to an existing residence or an alteration to existing property:

- Portable Totlet: The builder shall provide a portable toilet before ANY work commences on the
 job site.
- Building Permit: For new construction, the builder shall post a copy of the building permit issued by Montgomery County. The building permit must be easily viewed from the street.
- Safety Fencing: The builder shall install safety fencing along both side property lines. The fencing will be supported with steel "T" posts spaced at 8 ft. intervals. The safety fencing may be installed after the foundation has been poured, but MUST be installed before framing begins. On the zero lot line side, the fencing is not required where the foundation meets the property line. The builder will maintain the safety fencing in good condition throughout the duration of construction, until the landscape is installed or the house is occupied.
- Dumpster: The builder will provide a dumpster on site before framing begins and it must remain
 on site until the landscape is installed or the house is occupied. The dumpster shall be emptied
 promptly when full. The builder will be sanctioned if the dumpster overflows onto the job site or if
 construction waste is found on the adjacent properties. The builder may provide either a trailer or
 an 8 ft. x 8 ft. x 4 ft. plywood container in lieu of the dumpster; however, the overflow rules will still
 apply.
- 30 gal. Trash Can with Lid: The builder shall provide a 30 gal. trash can with a lid for the specific
 purpose of containing food related trash (wrappers, cans, bottles, etc.). The purpose of this trash
 can is to mitigate the attraction of vermin caused by food waste. All workers shall be instructed to
 use this trash can for food related trash.

Construction Etiquette

The builder/contractor and his sub-contractors are guests of the subdivision and should act accordingly. The builder is responsible for the behavior of his sub-contractors and failure of the sub-contractors to behave in a professional manner will result in sanctions against the builder. The following is a list of rules to assist the builder in meeting the expectations of the neighborhood:

- Hours of Work: The builder/contractor should limit work to the hours between 7:00am to 7:00pm
 Monday through Friday and 9:00am to 7:00pm on weekends.
- Parking: All workers shall park on the same side of the street to allow for the free flow of traffic.
 Workers shall not block driveways or mailboxes at any time.
- Music: Music shall be played at a volume that does not affect the neighbors.
- Food: The workers may bring food and drinks onto the job site; however, the empty cans, bottles, wrappers, etc. must be placed in the trash can provided by the builder.
- Pets: Workers who do not live in the subdivision shall not bring pets into the subdivision.
- Site Cleanliness: The builder/contractor shall make every effort to keep the jobsite clean. Scraps
 and waste materials, especially lightweight materials that can blow away, shall be placed in the
 dumpster at the end of each day. The builder should make every effort to keep construction
 materials neatly stacked (or stored) until used.
- Delivery of Materials: The builder/contractor shall make arrangements for materials to be delivered between the hours of 7:00am and 7:00pm. Materials shall be stored on the job site; no materials should be placed on adjacent properties.
- Adjacent Lots: Adjacent lots shall not be used for parking, storing materials, access to the back yard or other activities without written permission from the property owner.

Surveys and Inspections (New Construction)

Copies of the following surveys and inspection reports shall be submitted to the ACC as proof that the tasks have been successfully completed:

- Form Survey: Once the foundation form is placed, the builder shall call for a form survey (by a
 Registered Surveyor) to verify that the foundation is located within the building lines. The form
 survey should be submitted to the ACC <u>before</u> concrete is poured. If the form is not located within
 the building lines, the ACC will require all work to stop until the error is resolved.
- Foundation Inspection: The builder will provide the ACC with a letter from the engineer of record verifying that he has inspected the foundation and that it was constructed to his specifications.
- Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing (MEP) Inspection: The builder shall submit a copy of the MEP Inspection report, performed by an ICC inspector, to the ACC.
- Framing Inspection: The builder shall submit a copy of the Framing Inspection report, performed by an ICC inspector, to the ACC.
- Energy Inspection: The builder shall submit a copy of the state mandated Energy Inspection report to the ACC.
- Final Inspection: The builder shall submit a Final Inspection report, performed by an ICC inspector, to the ACC.
- Final Grade Inspection: The builder shall submit a copy of the Final Grade report, performed by an ICC inspector, to the ACC.

Fines and Penalties

The ACC may cite the owner/builder/contractor for violations of the rules herein. The ACC reserves the right to impose fines in conjunction with any such citation. Failure to respond to a citation and correct a violation in a timely manner may trigger the imposition of penalties by the ACC. Where the citation involves damages, the ACC reserves the right to step in to insure timely and complete repair of any damages at the expense of the owner/builder.

Refundable Escrow Funds

The owner/builder/contractor has placed an escrow fund with the ACC whose return is subject to the owner/builder/contractor's full compliance with the Rules for Execution of ACC Approved Projects. Any unpaid fines and penalties and any costs incurred by the ACC to resolve claims of damages to its satisfaction will be deducted from this escrow fund prior to its return to the owner/builder after completion of the project.

Authorizing POA Board Members

Michael J. Massey President	Paige Gerich Secretary Treasurer
Signature 71 Child	
	Signature, Notary Public - State of Texas
JUDY C DUERER My Commission Expires June 1, 2015	
Signature Pay Guil Paige Gerich	<u>W</u>
Acknowledged before me by Paige 6	gerich on Jan. 10, 2013
	Signature Notary Public - State of Texas



Guideline for ACC Approval of Walls and Fences

Effective Date: November 1, 2011

Riverstone Pointe's Deed Restrictions:

- Define all lots in Riverstone Pointe to be lakefront lots (Section 1.14)
- Expressly prohibit fencing beyond the rear foundation line of waterfront lots (Section 3.15)

In interpreting these provisions, the POA has ruled that the terms "lakefront lots" and "waterfront lots" shall be interpreted as equivalent expressions of the same thing.

Issues have arisen regarding the POA's interpretation of Deed Restrictions Section 3.15 as it applies to the design and construction of walls and fences on waterfront lots. The following policy is intended to provide lot owners with a uniform interpretation that they can reference in their submission of Architectural Control Committee (ACC) applications for either new construction or improvements to existing construction on their properties. Lot owners are encouraged to refer to this guideline in the framing of any application to the Architectural Control Committee (ACC) for either new construction or the modification or improvement of existing construction on their property.

Unless otherwise directed by the ACC in the course of a specific application process, owners may propose fences and/or walls on either side of their house:

- So long as they do not extend at any point outside the locally proximate front and/or back foundation lines of their house
- The height of the fence is 5 ft and its footprint lies entirely within their lot line
- Their materials of construction are either
 - Brick of stucco or stone that matches the exterior materials used on the residence (and previously approved by the ACC).
 - Wrought iron consistent with that now used throughout the subdivision
- Their design insures compliance with the Intent of the Zero Lot Line Policy, viz.,
 - A gate is incorporated into any structure across the front of the building line (BL) easement side of the property
 - That gate must be suitable for the movement of maintenance equipment into and out of the easement area
- Fencing along the length of the zero lot line edge of an easement is allowable only so long as there is no house on the adjoining property. As a condition of permitting, owner must agree to permanently remove any zero lot line fencing that interferes with the placement of the foundation or future maintenance of the house once a house project on the adjoining lot is approved.

¹ Note that the POA has promulgated a companion "Guideline for ACC Approval of Guards."

Adopted on October 27, 2011 by unanimous vote of the Board of Directors for Riverstone Pointe Property Association, Inc.

Board of Directors

Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc.

Robert Howell, President

Michael Massey, Vice President

Paige Gerich, Treasurer

Flourd Largary Engratum

Riverstone Pointe POA 9301 Old River Ct E Montgomery, TR 77756-3920

Guideline for ACC Approval of Guards

Effective Date: November 1, 2011

Definition of a Guard: "IRC referenceable "barrier" intended either to prevent 3rd party access to a nuisance hazard (notably a pool or spa) or to provide safety protection (notably to prevent falling off of stairs or a wall)."

Riverstone Pointe's Deed Restrictions:

- Define all lots in Riverstone Pointe to be lakefront lots (Section 1.14)
- Expressly prohibit fencing beyond the rear foundation line of waterfront lots (Section 3.15)
- Authorize (Section 4.04) and the POA has established the International Residential Code (IRC) as the minimum construction standard for the subdivision

In interpreting these provisions, the POA has ruled that the terms "lakefront lots" and "waterfront lots" shall be interpreted as equivalent expressions of the same thing.

Issues have arisen regarding the POA's interpretation of its Deed Restrictions as it pertains to supporting homeowner efforts to achieve and preserve safety beyond the rear foundation line of their properties. The following policy complies with Deed Restrictions and minimum construction standards IRC R3.11 and R3.12) and provides a consistent means for addressing and approving requests for certain guards for three potential safety issues should they arise in existing or proposed new structures that lie beyond a property owner's rear foundation line. Lot owners are encouraged to refer to this guideline in the framing of any application to the Architectural Control Committee (ACC) for either new construction or the modification or improvement of existing construction on their property.

Pool/Spa Guard

Unless otherwise directed by the ACC in the course of a specific application process, owners may propose to erect a barrier around a pool/spa not to exceed a height of 4 ft measured from ground level immediately adjacent to the location of the guard. They may propose to locate that barrier anywhere on or within 3 ft of the retaining wall of the pool/spa. The barrier height can be achieved by any combination of (a) above ground elevation of the pool/spa retaining wall and (b) black wrought iron of a type consistent with basic wrought iron now widely used in the subdivision.

Note that the POA has promulgated a companion "Guideline for ACC Approval of Walls and Fences."

Stairs

Unless otherwise directed by the ACC in the course of a specific application process, owners may propose to erect a guard for stairs involving four or more steps. The vertical height of the guard shall not be less than 34 inches nor more than 38 inches in height measured vertically. The guard shall be black wrought iron compatible with existing wrought iron throughout the subdivision with maximum openings of 4-3/8 inches.

Walls

Unless otherwise directed by the ACC in the course of a specific application process, owners may propose to erect a guard:

- On top of a wall elevated 30 inches or more above its immediately adjacent space.
- Which guard shall be made of wrought iron consistent with the wrought iron now in use throughout the subdivision
- Whose height rises not less than 36 inches nor more than 42 inches from the top of the wall.
- Whose maximum vertical opening is 4 inches.

Adopted on October 27, 2011 by unanimous vote of the Board of Directors for Riverstone Pointe Property Association, Inc.

Board of Directors

Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc.

Robert Howell President

Michael Massey, Vice President

Paige Gerich, Vreasurer

-loyd Lareau, Secfetary



Riverstone Pointe Property Owners Association, Inc.

P.O. Box 291, Montgomery, TX 77356

Phone: 936-931-8047

Email: President.Riverstone@gmail.com

Last Updated: September 7, 2013

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: INSPECTIONS, VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT OF DEED RESTRICTIONS

The Riverstone POA is responsible for enforcing the Deed Restrictions ("Declaration of Covenants") in the subdivision. The following basic policies for Inspections, Violations and Enforcement apply to the maintenance of lots and improvements. Separate Architectural Control Policies and Procedures address Deed Restrictions provisions dealing with the development of lots and the improvement of existing developments on lots.

Inspections:

The POA and its contractors will conduct regular routine onsite inspections of the subdivision. The frequency shall be determined by the Board and may change from time to time. At least once a year, a member of the POA Board shall participate directly in a comprehensive inspection of the subdivision. POA inspection will be conducted only from the vantage point of Old River Road and the subdivision's common areas.

Violations:

The POA's inspector shall be responsible for determining that a violation has occurred. It does this by one of two routes:

- Routine onsite inspections
- Confidential report turned in by a lot owner(s) (see attached Complaint Form)

In both routes, the specific Deed Restrictions clause(s) violated and adequate documentation of the violation must be cited as part of the inspector determination that a violation has occurred. Once a determination has been made, the inspector will serve the lot owner with a <u>NOTICE OF VIOLATION</u> the date of which shall establish the start date for a formal process of enforcement that can only be stopped by one of two routes:

- Lot owner resolution of the violation with lot owner written notice to to the inspector of the
 corrective action taken and confirmation from JDH of closure of the enforcement process.
 When accepted by JDH, the date on the lot owner notice will serve as the closing date on the
 enforcement process.
- Successful appeal by the lot owner to the POA Board (See Fine and Collections Policy for details)

The Notice of Violation will be sent out to the offending lot owner's current email and physical address on record with the POA. In February 2012, the Board passed a resolution making these the official means for communication and making the lot owner responsible for the accuracy of the information on file at the POA. Accordingly, the lot owner is responsible for any failure of a Notice of Violation to reach them and the Board will not look favorably on appeals based on the use of out-of-date or incorrect mailing addresses.

The subdivision's Deed Restrictions contain some explicit directives as well as many general directives that leave a great deal of room for interpretation. Even the seemingly explicit directives leave room for judgment. The POA, its inspector and the POA Board shall be guided in their interpretations of compliance and violations of Deed Restrictions entirely by the goals of (a) maintaining and enhancing property values and (b) maintaining a high quality of life within the community. On August 24, 2012, the Board received verbal consensus endorsement of this approach from a community wide meeting involving 68% of the community's voting lots.

Enforcement:

Prompt response through corrective action and formal notification to the inspector of the completion of corrective action can minimize or eliminate a lot owner's risk of Fines in conjunction with enforcement of a Notice of Violation. However, the lot owner is cautioned that failure to act promptly can trigger progressively greater fines and risk of legal action.

Effective June 1, 2010, the subdivision established a formal <u>FINE & COLLECTIONS POLICY</u> that governs the enforcement of Notices of Violation of Deed Restrictions. Note that the APPEALS PROCESS to the POA Board is outlined in the Fine & Collections Policy.

All lot owners are urged to familiarize themselves with this Policy so that they are fully aware of the consequences of disregarding a Notice of Violation once it has been sent. The Fine & Collection Policy is posted on the POA website:

APPROVED AND MADE EFFECTIVE AS OF SEPTEMBER 7, 2012:

Michael J. Massey, President Date

Paugui 1/18/2013

1/18/2013

Paige Gerich, Secretary and Treasurer Date

FORM:

LOT OWNER COMPLAINT AND DOCUMENTATION OF A VIOLATION OF DEED RESTRICTIONS

The POA inspector is only onsite at a moment in time and briefly to observe and document violations of Deed Restrictions. The present Form provides members of the Riverstone Pointe community a CONFIDENTIAL means for observing and documenting what they believe to be Deed Restriction violations that occur between inspector onsite inspections.

THE FOLLOWING FORM MUST BE FILLED OUT, SUPPORTED BY ADEQUATE DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTED TO THE POA INSPECTOR.

PLEASE APPRECIATE THAT, THE INSPECTOR CAN ONLY JUDGE WHETHER OR NOT A REPORTED VIOLATION HAS CERTIFIABLY OCCURRED BASED UPON THE DOCUMENTATION SUPPLIED BY THE COMPLAINANT. The inspector will rule on the complainant's filing in a timely manner upon receipt and notify the complainant whether or not he intends to serve a Violation Notice and proceed with Enforcement.

Filing	Date of Complaint:	<u> </u>	
Offen	iding Property:	Lot #(s)	Lot Owner Street Number(s)
/iola	tion Basics:		
•	Date(s) of Witnessed Violation	on:	
•	Believed Deed Restrictions C	lause(s) Violated (M	lust be Filled Out):
			_

,	
100	
7	
	/explanation of attached documentation:
	/explanation of attached documentation: PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
-	
-	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
-	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
-	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
F	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
-	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary
F .	PHOTOS (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary VIDEO (Date/Time Stamped) — additional pages as necessary

	(Na	me of Witness linked to attached statemen
CONFIDENTIAL INFORM	IATION:	gr.
legal requirements in the cours	se if enforcement. WI	te of a complaint unless forced by compliant in the typical situation may involve only only only only only only only only
Name of Complainant:		
Location of Complainant:	 Lot #	Lot Street Number
Signature:		
Name of Complainant:	****	
Location of Complainant:	Lot#	Lot Street Number
Signature:		
Signature: Attach additional pages as nece	essarv	

Authorizing POA Board Members

Michael J. Massey
President

Paige Gerich Secretary Treasurer

Signature 11 ECE	had Mousey	
Acknowledged before me by _	Michael J. Massey on Jan. 18 Michael J. Massey	, 2013
	Signature, Novary Public – State of Texas	

JUDY C DUERER
My Commission Expires
June 1, 2015

Signature Paige Gerich

Acknowledged before me by Yaige, Clevich on Jan 18 20

Signature, Notary Public – State of Texas



After Recording, Return to: Riverstone Pointe POA P.O. Box 291 Montgomery, TX 77356-0291